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MT. ZEPHYR CHAS-69 

#7s Descriptions 

Mt. Zephyr stands on the east side of a private road, about 275 
yards north of the junction of the farm road and Maryland Route 
227 (Pomfret-Pomonkey Road). The entrance to the farm is located 
approximately seven-tenths of a mile east-southeast from the junction 
of Maryland Route 227 and Livingston Road at Pomonkey. 

Until it was completely renovated on both the interior and exterior 
in the 1930's, Mt. Zephyr was a typical rural farmhouse of the early 
and mid-nineteenth century. Of a stepped, three-part composition, 
it consists of a two-story, three-bay main block at the south end, 
a one and one-half story, two-bay center section, and a one-story, 
two-bay north wing. All three parts of the house are of frame con­
struction, with one exterior chimney at the south end of the main 
block and a second chimney at the north end of the center section, 
the latter partially covered by the north wing. Although the side 
hall-single parlor room configuration and remaining original woodwork 
in the main block indicates a circa 1835-50 construction date for 
that portion of the house, almost all of the original w~odwork of 
the two north sections has been removed; however, construction tech­
niques, the design of the north chimney and other details suggest 
that the two-part north wing pre-dates the main block. They were 
probably built as a single unit within the first quarter of the nine­
teenth century, with what is now the center section servjng as a 
small dwelling with an attached kitchen-service wing. The roof framing 
of the north-end section utilizes sa:plfngs for rafters, a. construction 
material typically used in kitc..~ens and other dependencys throughout 
the first half of the nineteenth century; the nails used in the 
building of the roof are of a type manufactured after 1800. 

In the 1930's the house was thoroughly renovated inside and out. 
A major alteration occured when the exterior walls of the main block 
and center section were veneered with old brick laid in a running bond 
pattern and the south end chimney torn down and rebuilt. At the same 
time the exterior walls of the north end wing were skillfully veneered 
with fieldstone and remains an impressively executed example of 
stone masonry ::rorn this period. While the interior of the main block 
was left relatively intact, both north sections of the house were 
completely remodeled on the interior. Additional alterations include 
the raising of the rear slope of the roof of the center section to two 
storys, the replacement (or addition} of a single dormer on the west 
side of the same roof, and the addition of a brick kitc.~en and pore.~ 
extending the full width of the ma in block and center section on the 
east side. At the present time a full basement is being provid2d 
beneath the main blocka From within the cellar, which replaces an 
earlier but smaller earth walled and floored area, can be seen the 
original hevm sills and bearing beams and the flattened log joists 
supporting the walls and floors of this part of the house. A door in 
the east wall of the cellar opens into a small brick-walled room, the 
precise age and initial function of which remains undetermined. 
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MT. ZEPHYR rnAS-69 

#81 Statement of Significances 

Mt. Zephyr, a three-part house of late-Federal styling, is 
actually a frame house that was extensively remodeled in the 1930's 
when the main block and center section were veneered with brick and 
the north wing with fieldstone. The center and north-end parts of 
the house are believed to have constituted a small one-room dwelling 
with a kitchen-service wing built in the early nineteenth century. 
The larger, south-end section was added somewhat later, probably 
between 1835 and 1850. Despite the extent of the alterations, Mt. 
Zephyr is a very attractive house--time and the elements having 
joined to age and soften the brick and stone veneers. It is an 
interesting example of a renovation in the pseudo-colonial style 
from the 1930's, when work of this type attained great popularity, 
largely influenced by the highly publicized reconstruction/restora­
tion of Colonial Williamsburg being carried out at that time~ 

The property,named Mt. Zephyr in this century, is composed of parts 
of several different tracts of land, including Independency (now known 
as Independence), Dent's Levels, C~wpens and Snap (the last also 
known as Snip Snap and Snap Swap). Although Dent's Levels is not 
a patent tract, the name appears frequently in area land records and 
was owned by the locally prominent Dent family during much of the 
eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. Independency, a substantially 
largar tr-act of 112C ;:;:.ere:., ~.vas p~tented ~y Ric.11.a::-C. and Th2cpJ;.iJ.us 
Dent in 1792.2 Snap, consisting u"f twenty acres, was patented in 
1755 by Peter Dent.3 Cowpens, encompassing 183 acres, was patented 
by Alexander Wilkinson in 1792, but land of that name in this same 
location was owned by George Dent in 1783.4 According to the 1783 tax 
assessments, Cowpens, with "two small log houses and a tobacco house," 
was the only one of these tracts with buildings standing at that time.5 

In 1876 John w. Mitchell, trustee, in t..'1e settlement of a dispute 
involving Amos Horton, et al, versus William Rowe and Joseph Guy, sold 
to William Rowe lands "comprising the farm owned by John 1'i'. Guy, de­
ceased, contairi.ing some 384 acres. 11 6 The 384 acres included 160 acres 
known as Cowpen and Cowpen Enlarged Guy purchased from the estate of 
Alexander Wilkinson in 1845, and 224 acres acres made up of parts of 
Independency, White Haven and Snap he bought from Walter Hannon in 
1850.7 (In 1838 Guy purchased 71 acres of Dent's Levels from Peter 
Dent, but this was not part of Guy's estate that was sold to Rowe in 
1876.) It is not known on which of these tracts the house known today 
as Mt. Zephyr sta~ds, but it appears likely that it was the Wilkinson 
tract since he is }mow'!l to ha-,re lived on the property prior t.o his 
death. In 1887 William Rowe sold "the lands conveyed (to him) by John 
Mitchell, trustee, in 1876," to 1'1ary Nelson for $2, 500. 00. 8Mary Nelson 
in turn sold the same lands to Ria.'1ard Earnshaw in 1910, and in 1919 
Alice Earnshaw, executrix,sold the same property to Alice Bolton.9 
The property has remained in the possession of the heirs of Alice 
Bolton since that time. 
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Footnotes 

1. Charles County Land Records, La Plata, Maryland. Liber 
142, folio 343; Liber 172, folio 203. 

2. Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland. Patents: Liber 
ICF, folio 662. 

3, HR. Patents& BC&GS#l, folio 407. 

4. HR. Patents: ICF, folio 703. 

5. HR. 1783 Tax Assessments. Charles County, District #5. 

6. Charles County Land Records: Liber BGS#l, folio 207. 

7. Liber WM#l, folio 629; Liber WM#3, folio 566. 

8. Liber JST#l, folio 517. 

9. Liber JST#22, folio 66; Liber JST 35, folio 398. 
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